RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 TITLE PAGE PAGE 1
RELEASE: 1

Effective September 30, 2020, the AT&T Corp. Idaho Residential Local (N) Exchange Services Tariff is being cancelled and withdrawn in its entirety. (N)

Effective November 1, 2012, the AT&T Corp. Idaho Residential Local Exchange Services Tariff hereby supersedes and replaces the AT&T Communications of the Mountain States, Inc. Idaho Residential Local Exchange Services Tariff in its entirety.

AT&T CORP.

RESIDENTIAL LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES

REGULATIONS

AND

SCHEDULES OF RATES

IDAHO

IDAHO

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 MASTER TABLE OF CONTENTS EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 1 RELEASE: 1

MASTER TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREFACE			
SECTION	1	DEFINITIONS	
SECTION	2	GENERAL REGULATIONS	
SECTION	3	SERVICE CHARGES	
SECTION	4	MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE	
SECTION	5	OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS	
SECTION	6	DIRECTORY SERVICES	(T)
SECTION	7	CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT	, ,
SECTION	8	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	
SECTION	9	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	
SECTION	10	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	
SECTION	11	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	
SECTION	12	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	(T)
SECTION	13	RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	(T)
			. ,

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREFACE	
	<u>Page</u>
APPLICATION	1
EXPLANATION OF TARIFF CHANGE SYMBOLS	1
<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS	
1.1 DEFINITION OF TERMS	1
<u>SECTION 2</u> - GENERAL REGULATIONS	
2.1 ESTABLISHING AND FURNISHING SERVICE 2.1.1 APPLICATIONS FOR SERVICE 2.1.2 CANCELLED APPLICATIONS 2.1.3 CANCELLATION FOR CAUSE 2.1.4 OBLIGATION TO FURNISH SERVICE 2.1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF FACILITIES 2.1.6 CREDIT ESTABLISHMENT	1 1 2 2
2.2 OBLIGATIONS AND LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY	2

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE 2
RELEASE: 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS (continued)	Ð
	Page
2.3 OBLIGATIONS OF THE CUSTOMER	
2.4 TRANSFER OF SERVICE BETWEEN CUSTOMERS	
2.5 TERMINATION OF SERVICE FOR CAUSE	
2.6 PAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND LATE CHARGES	5
2.7 MINIMUM PERIOD	
2.8 SPECIAL TAXES, FEES, CHARGES	
2.9 RESTORAL OF SERVICE CONDITIONS	
2.11 ALLOWANCE FOR INTERRUPTIONS	8
2.12 SPECIAL SERVICE ARRANGEMENTS	8
2.13 WORK PERFORMED OUTSIDE REGULAR HOURS	8
2.14 CONSTRUCTION CHARGES	8
2.15 PROMOTIONAL OFFERINGS	8
2.16 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	9
SECTION 3 - SERVICE CHARGES	
3.1 GENERAL DEFINITION	1
3.1.1 TYPES OF CHARGES	
3.2 DUAL ELEMENT SERVICE CHARGES	
3.2.1 DESCRIPTION	
3.2.2 SERVICE AND EQUIPMENT CHARGE	
3.2.3 APPLICATION OF CHARGES	2

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 TABLE OF CONTENTS EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 3 RELEASE: 0

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

		<u>Page</u>
4.1 A	PPLICATION	1
4.2 R	EGULATIONS	1
4.3 T	WO-POINT SERVICE	1
	CLASSES OF SERVICE	
4.3.2	RATES AND CHARGES	4
4.3.3	TIMING	5
4.3.4	METHOD OF APPLYING RATES	6
4.3.5	SCHEDULE OF RATES	7
4.3.6	RATE PERIODS	14
4.3.7	SERVICE CHARGES	15

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE 4
RELEASE: 13

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE (continued)		
	Page	
4.4 AT&T NON-SUBSCRIBER SERVICE CHARGE	19 20 21 22 23 24	(T)
CPMEJ, CPMHJ, CPMHK, CPMH3, CPMRY, CPMRY, CPMRN, CPMRO CPMEJ, CPMHJ, CPMHK, CPMH3, CPMWL, CPMRY, CPMTX, CPMLL, CPMLM 4.11 AT&T UNLIMITED PLUS PLAN (BLKCH, BLKNP)	25 26 50	(T)
SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS		
5.1 REACH OUT® IDAHO 5.2 AT&T LDMTS BASIC SCHEDULE NPA VOLUME DISCOUNT OPTION 5.3 AT&T NATIONWIDE CALLING 150SM DIRECT (BLKF8, BLKF9, BLKGA, BLKM1, CPMAC) 5.4 AT&T MILITARY CONNECT 'N SAVE (OCPKN) 5.5 AT&T ONE RATE® NATIONWIDE 10¢ (CPMYA, CPMYB) 5.6 AT&T WORLDWIDE & US CALLING SM (OC4YD) 5.7 AT&T SIMPLIFIED PLAN (CPMDY, CPMBZ) 5.8 AT&T UNLIMITED WEEKENDS PLAN (BLKJB, BLKJD) 5.9 AT&T OFFER (CPMTA, CPMBS) 5.10 AT&T ONE RATE® V PLAN (CPMWM, CPME1-4, CPMHE, CPMKC, CPMKD, CPMKE, CPMNA) 5.11 AT&T ONE RATE® VI (CPMXA, CPMLK) 5.12 AT&T MONTHLY MINUTES II (BLKSA, BLKGB, BLKGC, BLKM3) 5.13 AT&T EASYREACH® WORLDWIDE (OC4AE) 5.14 AT&T MONTHLY MINUTES (BLKSB, CPMMM) 5.15 AT&T EASYREACH 800® (17CE1, 17CE2) 5.16 AT&T PREPAID PHONE SERVICE 5.17 AT&T WORLDWIDE PREPAID CARD (DIRECT OCEAN SERVICE)	45678910111212131415161721	(T) (M)
5.18 AT&T PROMOTIONAL OFFERINGS	. 22	(T) (M)

 $^{^{\}tiny{(8)}}$ Registered Service Mark of AT&T

(M) Material previously appeared on Pages 5, 6 and 7.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE 5
RELEASE: 13

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Material previously found on this page can be found on Page 2.		(N)
SECTION 6 - DIRECTORY SERVICES	1	(T)
SECTION 7 - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT		(M)
7.1 CONNECTIONS. 7.1.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS. 7.1.2 CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITY. 7.1.3 CARRIER RESPONSIBILITY. 7.1.4 SERVICE PROVIDED BY A LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIER. 7.1.5 CONNECTION OF COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS. 7.1.6 CONNECTION OF CUSTOMER PREMISES EQUIPMENT TO EXCHANGE SERVICE 7.1.7 OTHER CONNECTIONS 7.1.8 MINIMUM PROTECTION CRITERIA 7.1.9 RECORDING OF TWO-WAY CONVERSATIONS 7.1.10 VIOLATION OF REGULATIONS	1 1 3 4 4 4 9 17 19 20	
SECTION 8 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
SECTION 9 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
SECTION 10 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
SECTION 11 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
SECTION 12 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
SECTION 13 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE	1	
		(M)

(M) Material can be found on Pages 4 and 5.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE 6

RELEASE: 9

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 2. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE 7
RELEASE: 12

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 2. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 TABLE OF CONTENTS EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 8 RELEASE: 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Material previously appearing on this Page can be found on Page 3. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 PREFACE EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1 RELEASE: 0

APPLICATION

AT&T Consumer Customers:

The reference document for interstate terms and conditions for AT&T consumer long distance services is the AT&T Service Guides located at http://www.att.com/serviceguide/home will contain the interstate terms and conditions. Customers who cannot access the web may call 1-888-288-4099 to request a copy of the Service Guide appropriate for their calling plan.

This tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to intrastate telecommunications services in the State of Idaho furnished by AT&T Corp. hereinafter referred to as the Company or AT&T.

EXPLANATION OF TARIFF CHANGE SYMBOLS

These symbols will appear in the right hand margin, when applicable.

- (C) To signify changed regulation
- To signify discontinued material (D)
- (I)
- To signify rate increase
 To signify material moved from or to another part of the (M) Tariff with no change, unless there is another Tariff change symbol present
- (N) To signify new material
- (T)To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation
- (R) To signify rate reduction

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms

Access Line

A transmission path that connects a customer premises to an AT&T central office.

Access Line Grouping

An access line or group of access lines with the same identifying number. A group of access lines may be either standard or special access lines, but must be all of one type.

Accessories

Devices which are mechanically attached to, or used with, the facilities furnished by the Company and which are independent of, and not electrically, acoustically, or inductively connected to, the conductors in the communications path of the Company facilities.

Assembly

A configuration consisting of Customer equipment and/or a Customer communications system or systems, which is connected to CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE.

AT&T Central Office

The physical point of access for a service to the AT&T interoffice network.

Authorized User

A person firm or corporation who is authorized by the Customer or joint user to be connected to the service of the Customer or joint user, respectively. An authorized user must be specifically named in the application for service and on whose premises a station of the service must be located.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Building

A structure consisting of an enclosed area surrounded by outside walls and under one continuous roof.

Call

A completed connection established between a calling station and one or more called stations.

Called Station

The station (e.g., telephone number) called, or the terminating point of a call.

(D)

Calling Station

The station from which a call is originated.

Central Office

A switching unit providing telecommunications services to the general public for terminating and interconnecting lines. More than one central office may be located in the same building.

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 3
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

(D)

Communications Systems

Non-Company dedicated channels and equipment furnished for communications between premises.

Company

Refers to AT&T Corp.

Connecting Arrangement

The equipment provided by the Company to accomplish the direct electrical connection of Customer facilities with the facilities of the Company

Connecting Company/Carrier

Any telephone company or carrier whose facilities may be connected with those of the Company for the purpose of furnishing telecommunications services.

Contract

The service agreement between a Customer and the Company under which facilities for communications between specified locations are furnished, in accordance with the provisions of this Tariff.

Customer

The person, firm, corporation or government agency contracting for service and responsible for the payment of charges and compliance with Company regulations. A channel service Customer must have a communications requirement of their own.

Customer Equipment

Station or terminal equipment provided by the Customer, authorized user or joint user.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 SECTION 1 PAGE 4 RELEASE: 0

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Direct Electrical Connection

A physical connection of the electrical conductors in the communications path. $\,$

Exchange

A geographical unit established for the administration of telecommunication services in a specified area.

Grandfathered

A term which describes Customer equipment that was directly connected as specified below and that is grandfathered under Part 68 of the Federal Communications Commission, Rules and Regulations because:

- The terminal equipment was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange services prior to July 1, 1979.
- -The multiline terminating system was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange service prior to January 1, 1980.
- The protective circuitry was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange service prior to the dates set forth preceding.

Home NPA

As used in connection with AT&T TOLL-FREE MEGACOM or AT&T TOLL-FREE READYLINE Service, the NPA of the AT&T TOLL-FREE MEGACOM or AT&T TOLL-FREE READYLINE Service Central Office from which a Customer has obtained service.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 5
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Joint User

A person, firm or corporation who is designated by the Customer as a user of a channel service furnished to the Customer and to whom a portion of the charge for the service will be billed under a joint user arrangement.

Local Access and Transport Area (LATA)

A geographic area established by a local exchange carrier which delimits its operational area and may include points outside the state.

Local Exchange Company

The company that provides local exchange service within an authorized serving area.

Message Telecommunications Service (MTS)

A communication between two or more stations located in different local service areas.

Miscellaneous Common Carrier

A communications common carrier which is engaged in providing service by radio through a base station authorized by the Federal Communications Commission but who does not also provide a public land wire telephone service.

Multiline Terminating System

Premises switching equipment and key telephone type systems which are capable of terminating more than one local exchange service line, or WATS access line.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 6
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Network Control Signaling

Transmission of signals used for telecommunications services which perform functions such as supervision (control, status, and charging signals), address signaling (e.g., dialing), calling and called number identification, audible tone signals (call process signals indicating reorder or busy conditions) to control the operating of switching machines.

Obsolete Services

Services referred to as obsolete are no longer suitable to meet the current needs of the general public. They will not be furnished as a new entire item of service to any Customer or applicant.

Off-Network Call

A call between a station on a CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE and a station which is not associated with a CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE.

On-Network Call

A call between stations on a CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE.

Premises

A building or buildings on continuous property (except rights-of-way, etc.) not separated by a public thoroughfare.

Protective Circuitry

Discrete electrical circuitry that is within the scope of the Registration Program and is designed to protect CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE from harm.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 7
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Rate Center

A specified geographical point within or outside an exchange area, from which mileage measurements are determined for the application of mileage rates for either channel services or message telecommunications services rates.

Rate Center Area

The area which encompasses the territories identified by the Central Office codes that are assigned to a rate center.

Registered

A term which means compliance with and approval within the Registration Program.

Registered Equipment

Equipment which complies and has been approved within the registration provisions of Part 68 of the FCC Rules and Regulations.

Registration Program

Part 68 of the FCC Rules and Regulations which permits Customer equipment to be directly connected to CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE and certain circuits without the requirement for protective circuitry.

Standard Access Line

A transmission path that connects a Customer premises to a AT&T custom service using local exchange company central office switching equipment and a common user transmission path to a AT&T central office.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 1
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 8
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 1</u> - DEFINITIONS

1.1 Definition of Terms (continued)

Station

A signaling unit and other type equipment at a point on a premises which allows the Customer to establish communication.

Switching Equipment

Equipment which performs the function of establishing and releasing connections on a per call basis between stations, telecommunications services, or communications systems.

Terminal Equipment

Any telecommunications equipment other than a multiline terminating system, or communications system connected to CUSTOM NETWORK SERVICE at a Customer's or User's premises.

Wire Center

The building where cable facilities are terminated which furnishes service within a designated wire center serving area.

- Serving Wire Center

The wire center from which service is provided to the Customer.

- Wire Center Serving Area

The area of the exchange served by a single wire center.

Telecommunications Network

The MTS and WATS network provided by this Company.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.1 Establishing and Furnishing Service

The general regulations are applicable in addition to the specific regulations for service offerings in other sections of this Tariff.

The Company reserves the right to limit use and/or duration of telecommunications services.

2.1.1 Applications for Service

Applications for establishment or changes of service may be made to the Company verbally or in writing.

The Company or the authorized agent reserves the right to refuse an application for service made by a present or former Customer who is indebted to the Company or the authorized agent on the Customer's behalf for service previously furnished, until the indebtedness is satisfied.

2.1.2 Cancelled Applications

Applications for new service, additions or modifications which are cancelled before service is established or before the work is completed may result in a charge to the Customer for all expenses incurred before the cancellation notice is received. However, the charges shall not exceed those which would apply if the work involved in the application or the request were completed, i.e., all applicable service connection, etc.

2.1.3 Cancellation for Cause

The Company by written notice to the Customer, may immediately cancel the application for or discontinue service without incurring any liability for the following reasons:

- -Nonpayment of any sum due the Company.
- -A violation of any condition governing the furnishing of service.
- -By order of a court or other governmental authority having jurisdiction.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

- 2.1 Establishing and Furnishing Service (continued)
- 2.1.4 Obligation to Furnish Service

The Company's obligation to furnish service is dependent on its ability to secure and maintain suitable rights and facilities, without unreasonable expense, and to provide for the installation and maintenance of those facilities.

2.1.5 Ownership and Use of Facilities

Facilities furnished by the Company on the premises of a Customer are the property of the Company. The Company's agents and employees must be allowed to enter the Customer's premises at any reasonable hour for installing, inspecting, maintaining, repairing the facilities, or removing them. This remains the responsibility solely of the Company, or its agents, unless otherwise specified.

2.1.6 Credit Establishment

The Company will conduct a credit investigation of each residential service Customer or applicant prior to accepting the service order, customer deposit or advance payment.

- 2.2 Obligations and Liability of the Company
- 2.2.1 Company Liability

The liability of the Company for damages arising out of mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission occurring in the course of furnishing service and not caused by the negligence of the Customer, or of the Company, in failing to maintain proper standards of maintenance and operation and to exercise reasonable supervision shall in no event exceed an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to the Customer for the period of service during which such mistake, omission, interruption, delay, error or defect in transmission occurs.

The Company is liable for damages to a Customer's premises caused by its gross negligence or willful misconduct.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 3
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.2. Obligations and Liability of the Company (continued)

2.2.2 Company Liability Exemptions

The Company's failure to provide or maintain service under this tariff shall be excused by labor difficulties, governmental orders, civil commotions, acts of God, and other circumstances beyond the Company's reasonable control.

The Company is not liable to the Customer for certain claims, losses or damages arising from the use of service furnished under this Tariff, such as:

- Claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of copyright arising from any communication; claims for patent infringement arising from combining or using the Company service in connection with facilities or equipment furnished by others; or other claims arising out of any act or omission of others relating to the service provided by the Company.
- The Company does not guarantee or make any warranty or accept liability for claims, losses, or damages with respect to its service when used in an explosive atmosphere.
- The Company may require the Customer to sign an agreement before furnishing the service.
- The Company is not liable for any act or omission of any other company or companies furnishing a portion of the service.
- The Company does not transmit messages but offers the use of its facilities, when available, for communications between parties.

2.2.3 Validity of Exculpatory Clause

The above tariff language does not constitute a determination by the Commission that a limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law. Acceptance for filing by the Commission recognizes that it is a court's responsibility to adjudicate negligence and consequential damage claims. It is also the court's responsibility to determine the validity of the exculpatory clause.

2.3 Obligations of the Customer

The Customer, authorized user or joint user shall provide, install, maintain and bear the expense of the provision of power required to operate Company facilities.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 4
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.3 Obligations of the Customer (continued)

The Customer, authorized user or joint user is responsible for reimbursing the Company for any loss through theft or damage to facilities caused by negligence or willful acts.

The Company's facilities should be available for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. An allowance will not be made for the period during which the service is interrupted for maintenance.

The Customer is responsible for provision, installation and maintenance of sealed conduit with explosive-proof fittings between facilities furnished by the Company in explosive atmospheres and points outside the hazardous area where connection may be made with regular facilities of the Company. The Customer must install and maintain service at locations within the hazardous area if, in the opinion of the Company, injury to employees or its agents, or damage to property might result, unless otherwise specified in this Tariff.

2.4 Transfer of Service between Customers

The service, or any rights associated, may not be assigned or transferred in any manner.

2.5 Termination of Service for Cause

The Company may terminate service, with written notice, due to:

- Nonpayment due the Company within the <u>Rules and Regulations For All Telephone Companies Under the Jurisdiction of the Idaho Public Utilities Commission</u> promulgated in Order No. 15290 in Case No. P- 300-6 by the Idaho Public Utilities Commission, and all amendments to those rules which may be hereafter adopted by the Idaho Public Utilities Commission.
- Abandonment of the service; The use of foul or obscene language; Impersonation with intent to defraud; Interfering with the service of others in any way.
- Right to Refuse Service

The Company reserves the right to refuse service to any applicant, or any applicant who wishes to establish service for a former Customer who has been found to be indebted to the Company for service previously furnished. The refusal of service will remain in effect until satisfactory arrangements have been made for the payment of all such indebtedness. At any time the above conditions become apparent to the Company, it may, at its discretion, terminate or suspend service until the prior indebtedness has been satisfied.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 5
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.5 Termination of Service for Cause (continued)

- Transmitting a message or otherwise attempting to obtain service for oneself or others so as to avoid payment of the applicable MTS or WATS charge.
- The use of the service to harass another.
- If any law enforcement agency advises the Company that the service is being used for unlawful purposes.
- The Company or authorized agent will restrict access to the network when an account is delinquent and the Company's or the authorized agent's attempts to obtain payment have failed.
- The Company may terminate service, without written notice, due to the violation of Tariff regulations.
- 2.6 Payments, Deposits and Late Charges

2.6.1 Payment of Bills

All charges for service and facilities exclusive of toll messages are payable in advance by check, money order, cash or electronically in lawful United States currency. Charges for toll messages are payable upon receipt of the bill.

The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for service, facilities and messages placed from or accepted at the Customer's station. Service may be terminated or suspended for non-payment.

Payment, which is not honored by the payer bank or institution, will be considered as nonpayment, and a returned check charge of \$20.00 will apply. When a local exchange company provides the billing function on behalf of the Company, the local exchange company's returned check charge applies.

2.6.2 Advance Payments

The Company reserves the right to require advance payments for service. The amount of advance payment is credited to the Customer's account and applies to any indebtedness under the contract.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 21, 2014 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2014 PAGE 6
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.6 Payments, Deposits and Late Charges (continued)

2.6.3 Late Payment Charge

Subject to billing and systems availability, when a bill or estimated bill for charges is presented to the Customer, any amounts for which payment has not been received within 30 calendar days of the invoice date will be considered delinquent. The Customer may be assessed a Late Payment Charge on any delinquent account balance. The Late Payment Charge is \$6.50. The period subject to the Late Payment Charge shall commence on the 31st calendar day after the invoice date, and continue from month to month until the delinquent balance is resolved. The Late Payment Charge shall be assessed monthly, based on the delinquent balance maintained on the account at that time. The Customer shall not be charged a Late Payment Charge on a delinquent balance, however, if an applicable law or regulation prohibits the imposition of such charges.

In the event a Customer disputes, in good faith, the validity of any charges appearing on its invoice, the amount of these disputed charges will be excluded from the total delinquent balance while the dispute is pending. If the Company sustains the charges after investigating the dispute, the applicable Late Payment Charges shall be deemed correct and binding on the Customer. If, alternately, the Company credits the charges after investigating the dispute, the Late Payment Charges will not apply.

When a local exchange company provides the billing function on behalf of the Company, the local exchange company's local exchange service late payment charge applies. Late payment charges do not apply until after the due date of the bill on which the usage charges first appear.

2.6.4 Deposits

The Applicant or Customer may be required to make a deposit to be held as a guarantee for the payment of charges for services furnished. When service is terminated, the amount of the deposit, with interest, will be applied to any indebtedness to the Company.

A deposit must be refunded or credited to the Customer's account prior to termination of the service if the Company deems it no longer necessary or upon satisfactory payment by the Customer of all proper charges for telephone service for a period of twelve consecutive months. The deposit will bear simple interest at the rate currently in effect by Order of the Commission.

Advice No. 2014-08

(C)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 7
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

- 2.6 Payments, Deposits and Late Charges (continued)
- 2.6.5. Convenience Fee For Payment Made With A Company Representative

A \$5.00 fee will apply for each instance of payment of outstanding charges when authorized by the subscriber by telephone (whether such telephone call was originated by the subscriber or by the Company) and when the method of payment would allow the payment to be immediately credited to the subscriber's account, such as payment via a credit card, an electronic check (eCheck), or any other discretionary type payment that may be accepted by the Company through such telephone contacts. This fee will not apply for payments taken directly by subscribers to authorized Company payment locations, payments mailed in, automatic funds transfers, payments through the Company Internet website and other conventional methods of payments. The subscriber would be informed of any applicable charges prior to processing the subscriber's request.

2.7 Minimum Period

The minimum period for which service and facilities is furnished is one month, unless otherwise specified in this Tariff.

2.8 Special Taxes, Fees, Charges

Insofar as practicable, any sales, use, privilege, excise, franchise or occupation tax, surcharges for Universal Service and other funds, costs of furnishing service without charge or similar taxes, surcharges or impositions levied by the Federal, State or Local government, or any political subdivision or taxing authority against the Company may be billed by the Company to its Customers on a prorata basis.

2.9 Restoral of Service Conditions

If service is suspended for nonpayment, service will be restored upon receipt of payment of all charges due, which will include the charge for service and facilities during the time of suspension, and may include a restoral charge. If the Customer has a history of payments returned for insufficient funds, the Company may require payment be made by cash, money order or certified check. If payment is made by personal check, service will be restored only after clearance of the check by the bank.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 8
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.11 Allowance for Interruptions

When a Company-caused error or malfunction causes a Customer's service to be interrupted, the Company will provide a credit allowance not exceeding an amount equal to the proportionate charge that would have been billed to the Customer for the period of time the service was interrupted. However, if service is restored within 24 hours of the interruption report or detection by the Company, no allowance will be made. These same provisions apply when the Company requests the Customer to temporarily surrender their service.

2.12 Special Service Arrangements

Special service arrangements consist of offerings not provided for in the Company's applicable Tariff. Rates and charges will apply based upon costs incurred and on the circumstances in each case.

These special service arrangements will be provided whenever, in the judgment of the Company, there is a valid reason for providing the service requested. In such cases, the Company reserves the right to require an minimum period longer than 1 month at the same location.

2.13 Work Performed Outside Regular Hours

The rates and charges specified in this Tariff contemplate that work will be performed during regular working hours. If, at the request of the Customer, work is performed outside of regular working hours, the Customer may be required to pay any additional costs incurred.

2.14 Construction Charges

The Company bases its rates and charges on services furnished under normal conditions. Installation of facilities involving unusual costs because of factors such as the time period, type of facility, or location requested by the Customer may result in special construction charges which will be based on costs incurred in addition to all other applicable charges.

2.15 Promotional Offerings

From time to time, the Company may offer services at a reduced rate or free of charge for promotional, market research, or rate experimentation purposes. Such offerings will be for a limited duration and customers will be so notified.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 2
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 9
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 2 - GENERAL REGULATIONS

2.16 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 3
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 3</u> - SERVICE CHARGES

3.1 General Definition

Service charges are one-time charges that apply for service connections and changes, visits by the Company to the Customer's premises when trouble reports result from the use of Customer equipment or facilities and the installation of jacks. They apply in addition to all other rates and charges for service.

3.1.1 Types of Charges

The charges are structured to reflect the work required in serving the Customer on each occasion. There are three major categories of charges described in this section:

- Dual Element Service Charges which apply for service connections and changes.
- Billing Change Charge which applies to establish or change a special billing arrangement and/or change in billing name responsibility subsequent to the initial installation of service.
- Maintenance of Service Charges, which apply for service visits to a Customer's premises when trouble has resulted from equipment or facilities provided by the Customer.

3.2 Dual Element Service Charges

3.2.1 Description

Premises Work Charge

A time sensitive charge applicable to noncomplex residence and noncomplex business, unless otherwise specified, for installation, move and change work performed on the Customer's premises.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 3
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 3</u> - SERVICE CHARGES

3.2 Dual Element Service Charges (continued)

3.2.1 Premises Work Charge (continued)

Premises Work charges apply, as required, in addition to Service and Equipment Charges for items of services which are listed in this Tariff.

3.2.2 Service and Equipment Charge

A charge that is associated with an item of service which applies on a per service basis each time the service is provided or changed. Service and Equipment Charges, where applicable, are shown with the item of service in the Tariff.

Unless otherwise specified, Service and Equipment Charges apply whether or not the facilities are in place. Facilities are considered as being in place when no change is made at the Customer's request in the type or location of the facilities.

3.2.3 Application of Charges

A. Premises Work Charges apply as follows:

	Noncomplex <u>Residence</u>	All <u>Other</u>	<u>USOC</u>
Initial Premises Work Charge First 15-minute increment, or fraction thereof	\$27.50	\$38.00	HRR1P
Additional Premises Work Charge Next three 15-minute increments, or fraction thereof, each	10.00	10.00	HRRAP
Additional Premises Work Charge All additional 15-minute increments, or fraction thereof, each	7.50	7.50	

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 3
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 3
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 3 - SERVICE CHARGES

- 3.2 Dual Element Service Charges (continued)
- 3.2.3 Application of Charges (continued)
- B. Billing Change Charge

Service & Equipment Charge

Each Service Order Required

Residence \$4.00 Business 7.50

C. Maintenance of Service Charges

The premises work charge described in 3.2.1. preceding applies for both noncomplex and complex services.

D. Restoral of Service

If service is interrupted due to nonpayment of charges due the Company or authorized agent on the Company's behalf, service will be reestablished only upon payment of all charges due the Company or authorized agent which may include the following restoration service charge:

Restoration Service Charge \$32.00

- Each line restored



TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4
PAGE 1
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.1 Application

Message Telecommunications Service applies to all calls made between two or more rate centers within the State of Idaho.

This service is provided for use by the Customer and may be used by others, when so authorized by the Customer, subject to the provisions of this tariff.

On or after March 18, 2016, the Company will discontinue the following services originating and terminating: Bill to a Third Number, Busy Line Verify/Interrupt, Collect, and Person-to-Person.

On or after July 31, 2016, the Company will no longer allow billing of calls to a Commercial Credit Card.

On or after October 1, 2016, the Company will discontinue AT&T CIID/891 Calling Card services.

4.2 Regulations

Regulations for MTS listed below are in addition to those contained in Section 2.

The message charges specified in this tariff are in payment for all service furnished between the calling and called stations.

The obligations of both Company and Customer as described in Section 2 also apply to MTS. In addition, during an MTS call the Customer should exchange identifying information with the called party to protect both their interests.

In order to control fraud, the Company may refuse to accept calling cards which it determines to be invalid.

4.3 Two-Point Service

4.3.1 Classes of Service

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.1 Classes of Service (continued)
- A. Dial Station

Applies when the calling person dials the telephone number without the assistance of an operator and the call is billed to the calling number. Dial Station rates apply when the operator places a call when the calling party is disabled.

(D)

(T) (M)

B. Operator Station

Applies when calls are completed with the assistance of an operator, except as otherwise specified.

(M) Material previously appeared on page 3.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4 PAGE 3 RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.1 Classes of Service (continued)

(D)

(M)



(M) Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 2.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 4
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.1 Classes of Service (continued)



4.3.2 Rates and Charges

AT&T Consumer Customers:
The reference document for interstate terms and conditions for AT&T consumer long distance services is the AT&T Service Guides located at http://www.att.com/serviceguide/home will contain the interstate terms and conditions. Customers who cannot access the web may call 1-888-288-4099 to request a copy of the Service Guide appropriate for

their calling plan.

A. Rates Applicable on Certain Holidays

Holiday calling rates do not apply to any calls.

B. Timing of Calls

AT&T LDMTS service rates are quoted in terms of initial and additional periods.

A per minute charge applies for each minute or any fraction of a minute after the connection is made for all classes of service.

C. Service Charges

A Service Charge applies to each Operator Station and OperatorHandled Conference Service calls. This charge is in addition to the
Initial and Additional Minute rate.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 5
RELEASE: 4

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.2 Rates and Charges (continued)
- D. Coin Telephone Payment Options

Public and semi-public coin telephones that use network coin signaling will not be suitably equipped to accept payment by coin for AT&T long distance calls. Alternative payment methods such as an AT&T prepaid card may be used for AT&T calls made from such telephones.

(D)

E. State Cost Recovery Charge (In-State Connection Fee)

A monthly service charge will be applied to each AT&T long distance residential Customer's account. This monthly charge is applied if a Customer has AT&T billable charges and credits on their bill, including but not limited to, monthly recurring charges or minimum usage charges. This charge does not contribute towards any applicable minimum monthly charge.

\$ 0.46

Billing of this charge applies on a per-account basis.

Monthly Charge:

4.3.3 Timing

A message starts at the time communication is established between the calling station and the called telephone number.

(D)

(D)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 6
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

4.3.3 Timing (continued)

A. Chargeable Time

Chargeable time ends when the calling station "hangs up" thereby releasing the network connection. If one station "hangs up" but the other does not, chargeable time ends when the telecommunications network connection is released by automatic timing equipment or by the operator. Chargeable time does not include time lost because of faults or defects in the service.

B. Time of Day

The time of day at the calling party rate center determines whether day/Peak, evening/Off-Peak, night or weekend rates apply.

4.3.4 Method of Applying Rates

The charge for Two-Point MTS is determined by the distance between stations, time of day and day of week, duration of the call and class of call.

A. Determination of Airline Mileages

- 1. Two-Point MTS rates between points in Idaho are based on the airline distance between rate centers.
- 2. The rate centers and the central offices for the State of Idaho are listed by rate center and numerically by central office in AT&T's Business Service Guide, in which this Company concurs.
- 3. For the purpose of determining airline mileages, vertical and horizontal grid lines have been established across the United States. The spacing between adjacent vertical grid lines and between horizontal grid lines represents a distance of one coordinate unit. A vertical (V) and horizontal (H) four-digit coordinate is computed for each rate center from its latitude and longitude location on a map. The intersection of the horizontal grid and the vertical grid identifies the V and H coordinates. The distance between any two rate centers is the airline mileage computed between their respective coordinate intersections. The methodology used to determine rate mileage can be found in AT&T's Business Service Guide. The rates applicable to mileage bands are provided in the Schedule of Rates.
- 4. In cases where a message begins in one rate period and ends in another, the Initial Period rate is the rate in effect at the time the connection is established. The rate for the Additional Period is the rate in effect at the beginning of each Additional Period. If the total computed charges for a call include a fraction of a cent, the fractional amount is dropped.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 RELEASE: 3

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.5. Schedule of Rates
- A. Dial Station X Schedule

InterLATA/IntraLATA Service

(T)

SECTION 4

PAGE 7

PEAK OFF-PEAK WEEKEND PER MINUTE RATE PER MINUTE RATE PER MINUTE RATE \$0.42 \$0.42 \$0.42

> (D) (D)

B. Dial Station - Y Rate Schedule

(T) (M1)

InterLATA/IntraLATA Service

(T)

PEAK		OFF	-PEAK	WEEKEND		
INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	
MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	
\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	

C. Dial Station - Z Rate Schedule

(T)(M2)

InterLATA/IntraLATA Service

(T)

PEAK		OFF	-PEAK	WEEKEND		
INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	
MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	
\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	\$0.42	

Operator Station - Sent Paid Non-Coin Calls

(C) (M3)

	DAY		EVENING		NIGHT/WEEKEND	
MILEAGE	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL	INITIAL	ADDITIONAL
BAND	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE	MINUTE
ALL	\$1.49	\$1.49	\$1.49	\$1.49	\$1.49	\$1.49

(D)

- (M1) Material previously appeared on Page 13.
- Material previously appeared on Page 14.
- (M3) Material previously appeared on Page 10.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission Office of the Secretary **ACCEPTED FOR FILING** November 27, 2023 Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4 PAGE 8 RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)



4.3.6 Rate Periods

(M)

-DAY, EVENING, NIGHT/WEEKEND

	MON	TUES	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT	SUN
8:00 AM to * 5:00 PM		DAY RA	TE PERIC)D			
5:00 PM to *11:00 PM		EVENING RATE PERIOD					EVE. RATE PERIOD
11:00 PM to * 8:00 AM		NIGHT	& WEEKEN	ID RATE P	ERIOD	•	

^{*}To but not including

-PEAK, OFF-PEAK, WEEKEND

TEINT, OIT TENT, MEEREND							
	MON	TUES	WED	THUR	FRI	SAT	SUN
7:00 AM							
to	PEAK RATE PERIOD						
* 7:00 PM						WEEKEND	
7:00 PM						RATE	
То		OFF-PE	AK RATE	PERIOD		PERIOD	
* 7:00 AM							

^{*}To but not including

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 9
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued) (D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4 PAGE 10

RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

(D)

(M)

(D)

(M) Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 7.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 11
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 12
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 13
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 7. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 14
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Pages 7 and 8. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023

SECTION 4
PAGE 15
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.7 Service Charges

(D)
(D)
1	,

		Billed To			
Class of Service**	Calling Card Calls				
	Cara carrs	Automated	Operator Assisted		
- Operator Station				(D)	
Sent Paid - Non-Coin	_		\$13.50	(D)	

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 16
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.7 Service Charges (continued)
- B. Automated and Operator Assisted Service Charges
 - In addition to the charges in 4.3.5, an Automated Service Charge applies to an 0+ Operator Station call that is fully automated (C) through operator systems and does not use a live Company operator.
 - An Operator Assisted Service Charge applies to any Operator Station call that is dialed using the appropriate operator code (c) (e.g., 0, 00, 1010288+0) that involves a live Company operator.

The surcharge does not apply:

- To calls in which a Company operator places a call for a Calling party who identifies himself/herself as being handicapped and unable to dial the call because of the handicap.
- O calls in which a Company operator is used only to record the calling station number where Originating Number Identification (ONI) is not available in the area of the Local Exchange Company service the originating station.

0+ calls in which a Company operator places a call because Automatic Number Identification (ANI) equipment is not available.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 17
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.7 Service Charges (continued)
- C. Service Charge Exceptions
- 1. Customers with Disabilities Discount

A 50% rate reduction will apply to all direct dialed long distance calls, within the State of Idaho, that originate from a teletypewriter or similar device from a residential line of a certified deaf and/or speech impaired Customer.

2. Rate Centers of Miscellaneous Common Carrier (MCC) Mobile Stations.

The rate center of mobile stations served by an MCC with whom the Company has made arrangements for the interchange of traffic is the wire center of the exchange in which the point of connection of the system of the particular MCC is located.

3. Telecommunications Relay Service

Telecommunications Relay Service(TRS) calls are those calls completed through a telecommunications relay service center. All terms and conditions are described in Consumer AT&T Service Guide. The discount for residential customers is found in section 4.3.7.C.1 preceding.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 18
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

- 4.3 Two-Point Service (continued)
- 4.3.7 Service Charges (continued)
- D. Operator Transfer Service Fee

An Operator Transfer Service Fee applies to all completed intrastate calls and to completed calls to intrastate Directory Assistance, when an AT&T Customer dials 0-, reaches a Local Exchange Company operator and requests a transfer to AT&T to complete a call, and the Local Exchange Company operator transfers the Customer to the AT&T network from the Local Exchange Company network.

The Operator Transfer Service Fee is applied in addition to any other applicable Service Charges or Surcharges.

The Operator Transfer Service Fee does not apply to:

- Calls to 800 numbers
- Calls to 900 numbers
- Calls to SelectCall Service numbers

Rate per occurrence: \$.75

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 19
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.4 AT&T NON-SUBSCRIBER SERVICE CHARGE

(T) (M)

4.4.1 Description

(T)

A service charge that is applied to all Direct Dialed, Operator Station, Person-to-Person and Real Time Rated interLATA calls placed from a residential telephone that is not pre-subscribed to AT&T as the Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC). This service charge will apply in addition to the initial period and additional period rates as set forth in Section 4.3.5.A of this tariff. This charge will apply where billing capabilities permit. This service is an add-on to the interstate service and all interstate terms and conditions are contained in Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

4.4.2 Rates and Charges

(T)

The following intrastate interLATA rates will apply:

Rate

Rate Per Call:

\$3.50

(M) Material previously appeared on page 24.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 20
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

(D)

4.5 PUBLIC PAYPHONE SURCHARGE

(T) (M)

4.5.1 Description

(T)

A Public Payphone Surcharge applies to all completed consumer intrastate long distance calls placed from a public/semi-public payphone which are not paid on a sent paid basis. Specifically, the Public Payphone Surcharge applies to: 1) calls to intrastate Directory Assistance, 2) AT&T EasyReach 800 Service Calls, and 3) AT&T Prepaid Phone Service.

(D) (T)

(T)

The Public Payphone Surcharge is applied in addition to any other applicable Service Charges or Surcharges.

The Public Payphone Surcharge does not apply to:

- Calls paid for by inserting coins at the public/semi-public payphone
- Calls placed from stations other than public/semi-public payphones
- Telecommunications Rely Service calls

Discounts offered by AT&T discount plans and promotions will not apply to the Public Payphone Surcharge unless this specific charge is expressly covered in the AT&T discount plan or promotion.

4.5.2 Rates and Charges

(T)

Per Public Payphone Call (excluding Prepaid Phone Cards)

\$0.56

Prepaid Phone Service

Not to exceed

- Dollar Based Cards

\$1.20

- Minute/Unit Based Cards

35 minutes or units

- Dollar Based Cards sold from vending machines

\$3.50

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 25.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 21 RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.6 AT&T ONE RATE® PLAN* (OCPKG, OCPKA, CPMBE, CPMEM) (T) (M)

4.6.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Effective November 1, 2007, the AT&T One Rate® Plan will not be available to new subscribers.

Residential Customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

4.6.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

InterLATA and IntraLATA Service

Per Minute

Direct Dial Station

\$.23

Material previously appeared on Page 26.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

^{*}This plan was formerly known as AT&T One Rate KA (OCPKA), AT&T Simple Minutes (CPMBE), AT&T One Rate Basic (CPMEM).

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 22
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.7 AT&T ONE RATE® PLUS^{1,2} (CPMAF, CPMCD, CPMEH, CPMKB, OCPKX, OCPK2)

(T) (M)

4.7.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

This plan is available to customers who are pre-subscribed to AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC). Customers must enroll in this plan to be eligible for the rates listed below.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide at www.att.com/servicequide/home.

4.7.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

Eliqible Calls

Rate per Minute

Direct Dial Station - InterLATA \$ 0.16 Direct Dial Station - IntraLATA \$ 0.16

 $^1\mathrm{This}$ plan was formerly known as AT&T One Rate® Sundays (CPMAF), AT&T Select Saver (CPMEH), AT&T International Plan with 12¢ Domestic Rate, AT&T International Plan with Domestic Rate (OCPK2) and AT&T One Rate® Plus Plan (CPMKR).

 $^2\mathrm{Effective}$ April 1, 2021, Customers may no longer enroll in this plan. Existing Customers subscribed will continue to receive the benefits of this plan.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 22.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 23
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.8 AT&T PERSONAL NETWORK PLAN (CPMP2, CPMP3, CPMP4, CPMP5)

(T) (M)

4.8.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Effective March 11, 2000, AT&T Personal Network Plan is grandfathered to existing customers and not available to new customers.

The AT&T Personal Network Plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and will be available where billing capabilities exist. This plan entitles eligible customers to the rates specified below.

All other terms, conditions, extensions, or expirations of this plan are specified in the Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

Effective September 23, 1999, the Unlimited Weekend Calling feature for Dial Station calling is grandfathered to existing customers and not available to new customers.

4.8.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Eligible Calls	Rate per Minute	Service Charge
Dial Station Easy Reach 800 Service (formerly known as 800 Plan P)	\$ 0.12 \$ 0.25	None None

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 33.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4 PAGE 24

RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 19.

4.9 AT&T ONE RATE® EXACT (OCPK5)

(T) (M)

4.9.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Beginning March 15, 2001, this plan is grandfathered to existing customers and not available to new customers.

AT&T One Rate $^{\$}$ Exact is available to eligible residential customers. This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name which includes a monthly recurring charge and will be available only where billing capabilities exist. All other interstate terms, conditions, extensions or expirations and customer eligibility under this plan are specified in the Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

The initial period for Dial Station calls and Card calls consists of one full minute. The additional period for Dial Station calls consists of six-second increments, and the additional period for Card calls consists of one full minute increments.

4.9.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Class of Service	<u>Initial</u>	Each Add'l	Service
	Period Rate	Period Rate	Charge
Dial Station	\$.12	\$.012	None

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 25
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 20.

4.10 AT&T ONE RATE[®] I* (CPMRA, CPMRM, CPMRN, CPMRO, CPMEJ, CPMHJ, CPMHK CPMH3, CPMWL, CPMRY, CPMTX, CPMLL, CPMLM, CPMLN, CPMDM, CPMWB, CPMED, CPMPQ, CPMNB, CPMEC, CPMPK, CPMWN, CPMWP, OCPK1)

(T)(M)

(T)

4.10.1 DESCRIPTION

Residential Customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of

this plan. This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan and will be available where billing capabilities exist.

Additional terms and conditions are specified in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

4.10.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

Eliqible Calls

Rate Per Minute

Direct Dial Station

\$.10

*This plan was formerly known as: (1) AT&T One Rate® 5¢ (CPMRA, CPMRM, CPMRN, CPMRO, CPMEJ, CPMHJ); (2) AT&T One Rate® II (CPMLL, CPMLM, CPMLN, CPMDM, CPMWB, CPMED, CPMPQ CPMNB); (3) AT&T One Rate® III (CPMH3, CPMWL, CPMRY, CPMTX); (4) AT&T One Rate® I Plus (CPMHK); (5) AT&T One Rate IV; (6) AT&T One Rate® Off-Peak II(CPMPK); (7) AT&T One Rate® Weekends (CPMEC); (8) AT&T One Rate® Off-Peak V(CPMWN, CPMWP), and (9) AT&T Anywhere(SM) Plan (OCPK1).

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 44.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 26
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 21. (N)

4.11 AT&T UNLIMITED PLUS PLAN¹ (BLKCH, BLKNP)

(T) (M)

4.11.1 DESCRIPTION

The AT&T Unlimited Plus Plan is available to residential Customers who are presubscribed to AT&T, as their Primary Long Distance Carrier. Customers may enroll in this offer by completing and returning a written subscription form, calling an AT&T designated 800 number to subscribe or by subscribing during a marketing contact with AT&T.

This plan is offered in conjunction with the interstate AT&T Unlimited Plus Plan and is available where facilities and billing capabilities permit. All other terms, conditions and Customer eligibility under this plan are specified in the Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

4.11.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

This plan provides unlimited minutes of direct dialed 1+ state-to-state and in-state long distance calling for residential voice service only. If it is determined that usage is not consistent with residential voice applications, such as for Internet access services, commercial facsimile or auto-dialing, call forwarding, three-way calling, resale, telemarketing or other non-residential uses, AT&T may immediately suspend, restrict or cancel your service without prior notice.

Customers subscribed to this plan must pay a monthly interstate recurring charge.

(D)

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 49.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

¹ This plan was formerly known as AT&T Unlimited Plan (BLKNP).

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 SECTION 4 PAGE 27 RELEASE: 2

${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.13 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(P)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 4 PAGE 28 RELEASE: 6

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 22.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 29
RELEASE: 2

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.15 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(Þ)

(D)

Advice No. ID-18-ATT-0007

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 30, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 29, 2018 PAGE 30
RELEASE: 1

$\underline{\texttt{SECTION} \ 4} \ - \ \texttt{MESSAGE} \ \texttt{TELECOMMUNICATIONS} \ \texttt{SERVICE}$

4.16 RESERVED FOR USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 31
RELEASE: 5

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.17 RESERVED FOR FUTURE (T)

(Ď)

IDAHO

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: APRIL 18, 2013 EFFECTIVE: MAY 1, 2013 SECTION 4 PAGE 32

RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.18 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 33
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 23. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 17, 2017 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2017 PAGE 34
RELEASE: 3

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.21 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T) (D)

(D)

4.22 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 35
RELEASE: 2

${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.23 RESERVED FOR FUTURE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. ID-18-ATT-0007

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 SECTION 4
PAGE 36
RELEASE: 1

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.24 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-06

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 PAGE 37
RELEASE: 1

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.25 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-06

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 38
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 24. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2014 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2014 PAGE 39
RELEASE: 1

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.27 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-05

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 14, 2019

EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2019

PAGE 40

RELEASE: 3

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.28 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(Ď)

(D)

4.29 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 SECTION 4 PAGE 41

RELEASE: 1

${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.30 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(D)

(T)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 19, 2017 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2017 PAGE 42
RELEASE: 1

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.31 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2017-04

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2013 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2013 PAGE 43
RELEASE: 1

 ${\tt SECTION~4}$ - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.32 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2013-10

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 44
RELEASE: 5

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 25. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 45
RELEASE: 2

${\tt SECTION}$ 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.34 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 18, 2016 EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2016

SECTION 4 PAGE 46 RELEASE: 4

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.35 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T)

(D)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2016-01

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 SECTION 4 PAGE 47 RELEASE: 1

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.36 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-06

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2014 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2014 PAGE 48
RELEASE: 3

 $\underline{\mathtt{SECTION}\ 4}\ \mathtt{-}\ \mathtt{MESSAGE}\ \mathtt{TELECOMMUNICATIONS}\ \mathtt{SERVICE}$

4.37 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-05

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 49
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 4 - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 26. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: APRIL 19, 2018 SECTION 4
EFFECTIVE: MAY 1, 2018 PAGE 50
RELEASE: 1

<u>SECTION 4</u> - MESSAGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE

4.39 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(P)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

AT&T Consumer Customers:

The reference document for interstate terms and conditions for AT&T consumer long distance services is the AT&T Service Guides located at http://www.att.com/servicequide/home will contain the interstate terms and conditions. Customers who cannot access the web may call 1-888-288-4099 to request a copy of the Service Guide appropriate for their calling plan.

5.1 Reach Out® Idaho

5.1.1 Description

Effective September 1, 1997, Reach Out Idaho is grandfathered to existing customers at their existing location and not available to new customers.

For the monthly recurring rate, Reach Out Idaho provides customers an hour allotment consisting of up to 60 minutes of anytime intrastate dial station long distance service. Calling in excess of one hour is billed at an additional minute rate.

A. Regulations

- The minimum service period for Reach Out Idaho is one month. Customers who retain service for less than one month will be billed the monthly recurring rate.
- 2. Reach Out Idaho is provided only where billing capability permits.
- 3. Customers selecting Reach Out Idaho may not subscribe to any other AT&T intrastate optional calling plan.
- 4. Reach Out Idaho does not include Directory Assistance, Conference Service, Operator-Handled, or Calling Card calls.
- The charges and discounts in effect under this plan apply to all lines and trunks billed to the same billing number (one account).

 $^{^{} ext{@}}$ Registered Service Mark of AT&T.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.1 Reach Out Idaho (continued)

5.1.2 Discontinuation of Service

Reach Out Idaho may be discontinued by the customer upon written or telephonic notice to AT&T. In addition, AT&T will discontinue a Customer's subscription to the Plan in the following situations:

- When AT&T is notified that the Customer has changed its primary interexchange carrier to a carrier other than AT&T after the Customer subscribed to the

Plan, and the Customer has not notified AT&T that it wishes to continue such Plan. Discontinuance will be effective as of the date the Customer changed its primary interexchange carrier.

When AT&T has notified a Customer in writing that it plans to discontinue the Customer's Plan and the Customer does not, within 30 days of such notification, notify AT&T that it wishes to continue such Plan. Discontinuance will be effective 30 days from AT&T's mailing of its notification to the Customer.

5.1.3 Rates and Charges

The monthly rate is in addition to all rates and charges for all other telephone service.

If continuous service exceeds one month, the charges for a fractional part of a month will be a proportionate part of the monthly charges for the initial period of night/weekend use, based on usage.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 3
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

- 5.1 Reach Out Idaho (continued)
- 5.1.3 Rates and Charges (continued)
- A. Usage Charges

	<u>Charges</u>	(D)
Initial hour of anytime calling per month	\$ 9.99	(D)
Each additional hour of anytime calling	\$.20	(D)

Service and equipment charges in Section 3 apply.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 4
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.2 AT&T LDMTS BASIC SCHEDULE NPA VOLUME DISCOUNT OPTION

(T) (M)

5.2.1 Volume Discount

(T)

AT&T offers an optional Customer selected NPA (excluding area codes 700 and 900) volume discount to LDMTS Customers. The discount will be applied to the eligible LDMTS usage for calls completed to the single domestic NPA designated by the Customer during each monthly

A Customer who qualifies for and receives a NPA volume discount for a monthly billing period will also receive a bonus discount on the total eligible LDMTS usage during that monthly billing period for calls completed to all domestic NPAs other than the designated NPA.

The intrastate LDMTS Basic Schedule NPA Volume Discount is being offered in conjunction with AT&T's interstate Basic Schedule NPA Volume Discount offering. All terms, conditions and specific discounts are specified in Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 5.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 5
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 4.

5.3 AT&T NATIONWIDE CALLING 150Sm DIRECT^{1,2} (BLKGA, BLKF8, BLKF9, BLKM1, CPMAC)

AT&T will offer this plan to residential customers who are presubscribed to AT&T as their primary long distance carrier and are enrolled in this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name. Customers pay a monthly recurring charge that entitles the subscriber up to 150 minutes of accumulated state-to-state and in-state long distance Direct Dial Station usage each billing month. This plan is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

This plan includes AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls.

5.3.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

(N)

(T) (M)

Unused block-of-time minutes will not be carried over to the next month. In-state long distance direct dial station calls over and above the monthly minute allotment will be rated as follows, 24 hours a day, seven days a week:

Eli	igibl	le Minutes			
Beyond	the	Block-of-Time	Rate	Per	Minute

Direct Dial Station - InterLATA Calls \$0.10
Direct Dial Station - IntraLATA Calls \$0.10

 $^1\text{This}$ plan was also known as AT&T Nationwide Calling 120, AT&T Monthly Minutes III, AT&T 150 Monthly Minutes (BLKGA), AT&T One Rate $^{\circ}$ Savings (CPMAC) and AT&T Nationwide Calling 150sm (BLKF8). $^2\text{Effective}$ April 1, 2021, Customers may no longer enroll in this plan.

Existing Customers subscribed will continue to receive the benefits of this plan.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 15.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 6 RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.4 AT&T MILITARY CONNECT 'N SAVE (OCPKN)

(T) (M)

AT&T Military Connect 'n Save is an Optional Calling Plan that provides specific rates for direct dialed station calls and direct dialed station international calls placed from a military location and is available to residential Customers who are presubscribed to AT&T as their primary interexchange carrier.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate AT&T Military Connect 'n Save and is available where billing capabilities exist. All other terms, conditions, extensions, or expirations and Customer eligibility of this plan can be found in the Consumer AT&T Service Guides.

5.4.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

The following rates will apply:

Eligible Calls

Rate Per Minute

Dial Station See AT&T One Rate® Plan (OCPKG)

(M) Material previously appeared on page 16.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 7
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.5 AT&T ONE RATE® NATIONWIDE 10¢1 (CPMYA, CPMYB)

(T) (M)

AT&T will offer this plan to residential customers who are: 1) presubscribed to AT&T as their primary long distance carrier, 2) have an AT&T local access line, and 3) are enrolled in this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate AT&T One Rate® Nationwide 10¢ plan, which includes a monthly recurring charge. This offer is available only where facilities and billing capabilities permit. All other terms and conditions, extensions or expirations and Customer eligibility are contained in the Consumer AT&T Service guide.

5.5.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

In-state long distance direct dial station calls will be rated as follows, 24 hours a day, seven days a week:

Class of Service Maximum Rate Per Minute

InterLATA Calls \$0.10 IntraLATA Calls \$0.10

(D)

¹Effective April 1, 2021, Customers may no longer enroll in this plan. Existing Customers subscribed will continue to receive the benefits of this plan.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 17.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 8
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.6 AT&T WORLDWIDE & US CALLING sm (OC4YD)

(T) (M)

AT&T will offer this plan to residential customers who are presubscribed to AT&T as their primary long distance carrier and are enrolled in this plan.

This plan includes AT&T direct dial station state-to-state and instate long distance calls that are made from the customer's home, billed to the customer's main residential telephone account, and made without using an AT&T Operator or an AT&T automated call processing system. All other types of calls are rated at basic rates unless the customer is enrolled in another AT&T plan that covers these other types of calls.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate AT&T Worldwide & US Callingsm plan, which includes a monthly recurring charge. This offer is available only where facilities and billing capabilities permit. All other terms and conditions, extensions or expirations and Customer eligibility are contained in the Consumer AT&T Service guide.

5.6.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

In-state long distance direct dial station calls will be rated as follows, 24 hours a day, seven days a week:

Class of Service Maximum Rate Per Minute

InterLATA Calls \$0.20 IntraLATA Calls \$0.20

(D)

(M) Material previously appeared on page 18.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 9
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.7 AT&T SIMPLIFIED PLAN* (CPMDY, CPMBZ)

(T) (M)

5.7.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Effective November 1, 2007, the AT&T One Rate $^{\scriptsize @}$ Simple Plan is not available to new subscribers.

Residential Customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in the plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com.serviceguide/home.

5.7.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

Eligible Calls Rate per Minute Service Charge

Direct Dial Station \$0.29 None

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 20.

^{*}This plan was formerly known as $AT&T^{\textcircled{0}}$ One Rate $^{\textcircled{0}}$ Simple Plan (CPMDY).

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 10
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.8 AT&T UNLIMITED WEEKENDS PLAN1 (BLKJB, BLKJD)2

(T) (M)

5.8.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Residential Customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available only where billing capabilities exist. Customers pay a monthly recurring charge that entitles the subscriber to unlimited weekend (Saturday and Sunday) state-to-state and in-state long distance Direct Dial Station usage each billing month. Eligible AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls made Monday through Friday will be rated at a per-minute rate. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

This plan includes AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls.

5.30.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Rate Period

Weekend 12:00 a.m. Saturday through 11:59 p.m. Sunday Weekday 12:00 a.m. Monday through 11:59 p.m. Friday

Weekday Calling Per Minute

Direct Dialed Station calls \$0.09

Note 1: Effective December 31, 2003, this plan is no longer available to new subscribers.

Note 2: This plan was also known as AT&T Unlimited Sundays (BLKJD).

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 22.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 11
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.9 AT&T OFFER^{1,2} (CPMTA, CPMBS)

(T) (M)

5.9.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

Residential Customers have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

5.9.2 TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(T)

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com.serviceguide/home.

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

Class of	Rate	Service Charge
Service	Per Minute	Per Call
Direct Dialed Station	\$0.12	\$0.69

Note 1 Beginning April 29, 2006, Customers may no longer enroll in this Offer. Existing Customers subscribed to this offer on or before April 29, 2006 will continue to receive the benefits of this plan.

Note 2 This plan was formerly known as AT&T 10¢ Offer.

(M) Material previously appeared on page 28.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 12
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.10 AT&T ONE RATE® V Plan¹ (CPMWM, CPME1-4, CPMHE, CPMKC, CPMKD, CPMKE, CPMNA)

(T)(M)

This plan is no longer available to new subscribers. Residential Customers who have AT&T as their primary interexchange carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/servicequide/home.

5.10.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

AT&T Direct Dial Station in-state long distance calls will be rated as follows:

Class of Service Rate per Minute

InterLATA Dial Station \$0.12 IntraLATA Dial Station \$0.12

5.11 AT&T ONE RATE® VI2 (CPMLK, CPMXA)

(T) (M)

This plan is not available to new subscribers.

This plan is available to AT&T Residential Customers who have AT&T as their primary interexchange carrier and are enrolled in this plan.

This offer is an add-on to the interstate offer of the same name and will be available only where billing capabilities exist. All other terms, conditions, extensions, or expirations and customer eligibility under this plan are specified in AT&T's Consumer Service Guide.

5.11.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

The following rates will apply for intrastate Dial Station calls:

Class of Service Rate per Minute

InterLATA Dial Station \$0.12 IntraLATA Dial Station \$0.12

¹This plan was formerly known as AT&T One Rate On-Line (CPME1-4), AT&T One Rate 12¢ (CPMHE), AT&T Evenings Plan (CPMKC), AT&T eWeekends (CPMKD), AT&T Nights (CPMKE) and AT&T One Rate Global Plan (CPMNA).

²This plan was formerly known as AT&T One Rate® 10¢, AT&T One Rate® XA (CPMXA) and AT&T One Rate® Off-Peak III (CPMLK).

(M) Material previously appeared on page 30.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 13
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.12 AT&T MONTHLY MINUTES II* (BLKSA, BLKGB, BLKGC, BLKM3)

(T) (M)

This plan is no longer available to new subscribers. Residential customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier and are enrolled in this plan can receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name and is available only where billing capabilities exist. Customers pay a monthly recurring charge that entitles the subscriber up to 300 minutes of accumulated state-to-state and in-state long distance Direct Dial usage each billing month. Additional terms and conditions of this plan can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

5.12.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Eligible Minutes Beyond the Block-of-Time P

Per Minute

Direct Dial Station Calls InterLATA IntraLATA

\$0.10 \$0.10

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 32.

^{*}This plan was formerly known as AT&T 500 Monthly Minutes (BLKSA), AT&T 500 Weekend Minutes (BLKGB), AT&T 250 Weekend Minutes (BLKGC) and AT&T 300 Monthly Minutes (BLKM3).

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 14
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.13 AT&T EASYREACH® WORLDWIDE (OC4AE)

(T) (M)

Customers of Consumer Telecommunications who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Carrier may enroll in this plan. Customers can enroll in this plan by completing and returning an enrollment form provided by AT&T, calling an AT&T designated 800 number by enrolling during a marketing contact with AT&T or via a Company designated Internet address.

This plan is an add-on to the international EasyReach® Worldwide Plan and will be available only where billing capabilities exist. All other terms, conditions, extensions, or expirations and Customer eligibility under this plan are specified in the Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

5.13.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

InterLATA Service

Eligible Calls Rate per Minute Service Charge

Dialed Station See One Rate® Plan N/A

(D)

IntraLATA Service

Eligible Calls Rate per Minute Service Charge

Dialed Station See One Rate® Plan N/A

(D)

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 38.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 15
RELEASE: 5

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 5. (N)

5.14 AT&T MONTHLY MINUTES* (BLKSB, CPMMM)

(T) (M)

5.14.1 DESCRIPTION

(T)

This plan is not longer available to new subscribers. Residential customers who have AT&T as their Primary Interexchange Long Distance carrier and are enrolled in this plan will receive the benefits of this plan.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate plan of the same name. Customers pay a monthly recurring charge that entitles the subscriber up to 60 minutes of accumulated state-to-state and instate long distance Direct Dial Station usage each billing month. This plan is available only where billing capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

5.14.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Eligible Minutes	Rate
Beyond the Block-of-Time	per Minute
InterLATA Direct Dial Station Calls	\$0.10
IntraLATA Direct Dial Station Calls	\$0.10

*This plan was formerly known as AT&T 60 Monthly Minutes (BLSKB) and AT&T (N) 30 Monthly Minutes (CPMMM).

(M) Material previously appeared on page 47.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 SECTION 5 PAGE 16

RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 6.

5.15 AT&T EASY REACH 800° Option 1 (17CE1), Option 2 (17CE2)

(T) (M)

(T)

5.15.1 DESCRIPTION

AT&T Easy Reach 800° includes only one routing arrangement per AT&T Easy Reach 800° telephone number. Each routing arrangement furnished to the Customer will be arranged for either Option 1 or Option 2 only. The usage rates specified for Option 1 and Option 2 apply for all times of day, seven days a week, for all distances. Calls are billed on a full minute basis. The length of each call is rounded up to the next full minute. Charges for total chargeable minutes of usage will be determined and rounded up to the next cent. This service is complementary to interstate $\overline{\text{AT}}$ Easy Reach 800 $^{\circ}$ Service.

This plan is an add-on to the interstate AT&T Easy Reach 800° offer. This offer will be available only where facilities and billing capabilities exist. All other terms and conditions, extensions or expirations and Customer eligibility are contained in the Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

5.15.2 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

Service	Intrastate Rate		
Option	Per Minute of Use		
Option 1 ¹ Option 2	\$ 0.25 \$ 0.25		

Note 1: Beginning March 1, 2005, Customers may no longer enroll in AT&T Easy Reach 800° Service Option 1. Existing Customers subscribed to AT&T Easy Reach 800° Service Option 1 on or before March 1, 2005 will continue to receive the benefits of the Option 1 plan.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 48.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 17
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 7.

5.16 AT&T PREPAID PHONE SERVICE

(T) (M)

(N)

AT&T Prepaid Phone Service provides outbound voice grade communications service for calls charged to the following prepaid phone cards ("Prepaid Phone Cards"):

- Prepaid Phone Cards (physical or virtual) containing the AT&T brand, which include cards co-branded with the brand of another company (hereinafter "AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards").
- Prepaid Phone Cards (physical or virtual) containing the SmarTalk brand (hereinafter "SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards") and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest. Services provided with these cards are provided by AT&T d/b/a SmarTalk and ConQuest.

Customers can purchase Prepaid Phone Cards as follows:

- AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards directly from AT&T.
- AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards directly from retailers.
- SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest directly from retailers.

When sold through a retailer, price points for Prepaid Phone Cards and recharged minutes are established by the retailer and are prominently disclosed at the point of sale. When sold directly by AT&T, price points for AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards and recharged minutes are established by AT&T and are fully disclosed to the purchaser at the time of sale.

This in-state offer is an add-on to the interstate AT&T Prepaid Phone Service accessed through AT&T Prepaid Phone Cards described in AT&T's Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home. All terms and conditions are contained and described within the AT&T Consumer Service Guide.

This in-state offer is also an add-on to the interstate AT&T Prepaid Phone Service accessed through SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest described in the Prepaid Phone Card Service Agreement located at https://www.prepaidserviceguide.com.

5.16.1 RATES AND CHARGES

(T)

When sold directly by AT&T, price points for AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards are established by AT&T. When sold by retailers, price points for Prepaid Phone Cards are established by the retailer. Prices for cards sold by retailers are prominently displayed on the card or otherwise clearly provided to the customer. Prices for cards sold directly by AT&T are fully disclosed to purchasers prior to and at the time of sale. The price points do not include any sales tax and may not include other fees and charges that may apply to the transaction at point of purchase.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 50.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 18
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 8. (N)

5.16 AT&T PREPAID PHONE SERVICE (continued)

(T) (M)

5.16.1 RATES AND CHARGES (continued)

(T)

1. AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards - Minute/Unit based cards are available in various denominations up to 1200 interstate minutes/units per card, or as otherwise specified by AT&T. Dollar based cards are available in various denominations up to \$100.00, or as otherwise specified by AT&T. AT&T Branded Prepaid Cards, as well as recharged minutes or dollar value of service on these cards, will have a maximum per minute interstate price not greater than 25¢ unless purchased from a vending machine or at a terminal or transportation center, in which case the maximum per minute interstate price will not be greater than 99¢. In-state calls made with AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards may be decremented up to one minute/unit per minute of talk time. AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards may have an expiration date, as disclosed on the card and/or in the marketing material. AT&T Branded Prepaid Phone Cards may be rechargeable as disclosed on the card and/or in the marketing material. If rechargeable, a recharge convenience fee of up to a maximum of 15% of the recharge amount applies.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 51.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 19
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.16 AT&T PREPAID PHONE SERVICE (continued)

(T) (M)

5.16.1 RATES AND CHARGES (continued)

(T)

2. SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest - Minute/Unit based cards are available in various denominations up to 1200 interstate minutes/units per card, and Dollar based cards are available in various denominations up to \$100.00, or as otherwise specified. These cards will have a maximum per minute interstate price, excluding surcharges, not $\bar{\text{g}}$ reater than 25¢ unless purchased from a vending machine or at a terminal or transportation center, in which case the maximum per minute interstate price, excluding surcharges, will not be greater than 99¢. The following charges will be applied against calls made with a PenniesRule! SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Card: a 79¢ first minute surcharge for calls within the U.S., and a weekly fee of 12¢ beginning 7 days after first use. The following charges will be applied against calls made with a Habla a Mexico SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Card: a weekly maintenance fee of 95¢ after the first call is made, a 30% communication fee of the total value of the call, after each call, and calls more than 15 minutes are charged $50\ensuremath{\raisebox{0pt}{\circ}}$ A first minute surcharge of up to \$3.00 will apply to World Touch SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards. SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest are not rechargeable unless otherwise expressly stated on the card or packaging. If rechargeable, a recharge convenience fee of up to a maximum of 15% of the recharge amount applies. SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest may have an expiration date as disclosed on the card and/or in the marketing material. In-state calls made with cards purchased from a vending machine or at a terminal or transportation center will be decremented one minute/unit for each minute of talk time. All other SmarTalk Prepaid Phone Cards and Prepaid Phone Cards where service is provided by ConQuest may be decremented up to one minute/unit for each minute of talk time for in-state calls.

(M) Material previously appeared on page 52.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 20
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.16 AT&T PREPAID PHONE SERVICE (continued)

(T) (M)

5.16.1 RATES AND CHARGES (continued)

(T)

- 1. Directory Assistance is available only through the AT&T Prepaid Phone Service platform and is only available for domestic directory assistance requests. Directory assistance requests will have a maximum charge of not greater than 40 minutes/units for Minute/Unit based cards or \$5.00 for Dollar based cards per request. An announcement will provide the charge for directory assistance prior to connecting the call.
- 2. The U.S. Public Payphone Surcharge applies when a Prepaid Phone Card is used to place a call from a U.S. public or semi-public payphone.
- 3. State Universal Service Charge AT&T may, at its option, apply the State Universal Service Charge at point of sale.

(M) Material previously appeared on Page 53.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 21
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.17 AT&T WORLDWIDE PREPAID CARD (DIRECT OCEAN SERVICE)

(T) (M)

5.17.1 Description

(T)

This service is available to customers who purchase or have an AT&T Worldwide PrePaid Card with sufficient available balance(s). Customer must access the AT&T network by dialing the appropriate access number as instructed on the Prepaid Card.

This plan includes AT&T in-state long distance calling card calls that are placed using the AT&T Worldwide PrePaid Card, via the designated access number, completed as instructed on the card, and without the assistance of an operator.

All calls must be charged against an AT&T Worldwide PrePaid Card that has sufficient available balance. Calls will be interrupted with an announcement 60 seconds prior to the time the balance will be depleted. Calls in progress will be terminated by the Company if the balance on the prepaid card is insufficient to continue the call. AT&T Worldwide PrePaid Card balances will be reduced by the appropriate charge for each minute or fractional part of a minute that a call continues.

This plan is an add-on to the international plan of the same name and is available where billing and technical capabilities exist. Additional terms and conditions can be found in the AT&T Consumer Service Guide located at www.att.com/serviceguide/home.

Directory Assistance is available only through the AT&T PrePaid Phone Service platform and is only available for domestic directory assistance requests. Directory assistance requests will be charged basic Directory Assistance rates. An announcement will provide the charge for directory assistance prior to connecting the call.

5.17.2 Rates and Charges

(T)

Eligible Calls	<u>Per Minute</u> Rate	<u>Per Call</u> Surcharge
Eligible AT&T Calling Card Calls	\$.10	\$0.00

(M) Material previously appeared on page 55.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 22
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 10. (N)

5.18 Promotional Offerings

(M) (T)

From time to time, AT&T may offer services at a reduced rate or free of charge for promotional, market research, or rate experimentation purposes. Such offerings will be for a limited duration and customers will be so notified.

(M) Material previously appeared in Section 13, Page 1.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2013 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2013 PAGE 23
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.31 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2013-10

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014

4 SECTION 5 , 2014 PAGE 24 RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.32 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(Ď)

(D)

Advice No. 2014-06

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 17, 2017

EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2017

PAGE 25

RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.33 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 26, 2013 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: MARCH 8, 2013 PAGE 26
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.34 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2013-04

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

SECTION 5 PAGE 27

RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.35 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T) (D)

(D)

(D) (D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 28
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 11. (N)

5.18 Promotional Offerings

(T) (M)

From time to time, AT&T may offer services at a reduced rate or free of charge for promotional, market research, or rate experimentation purposes. Such offerings will be for a limited duration and customers will be so notified.

(M) Material previously appeared in Section 13, Page 1.

Advice No. ID-23-ATT-0006

Idaho Public Utilities Commission
Office of the Secretary
ACCEPTED FOR FILING
November 27, 2023
Boise, Idaho

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 29
RELEASE: 1

<u>SECTION 5</u> - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.37 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(P)

Advice No. ID-18-ATT-0007

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023

SECTION 5 PAGE 30

RELEASE: 3

(N)

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 12.

IDAHO TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MARCH 21, 2013 EFFECTIVE: APRIL 1, 2013 SECTION 5 PAGE 31 RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.40 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T) (D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 32
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 13. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 19, 2017 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2017 PAGE 33
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.42 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(D)

(P)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2017-04

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2013 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2013 PAGE 34
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.43 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MARCH 21, 2013 EFFECTIVE: APRIL 1, 2013 SECTION 5 PAGE 35 RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.44 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(C)

(Ď)

5.45 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2014 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2014 PAGE 36
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.46 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

5.47 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 17, 2017 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2017 PAGE 37
RELEASE: 4

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.48 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

5.49 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 38
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 14. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: FEBRUARY 19, 2020 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: MARCH 1, 2020 PAGE 39
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.51 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(p)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014

SECTION 5 PAGE 40 RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.52 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 SECTION 5 PAGE 41

RELEASE: 0

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.53 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 SECTION 5 PAGE 42

RELEASE: 0

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.54 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 22, 2018 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2018 PAGE 43
RELEASE: 7

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.55 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. ID-18-ATT-0007

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 19, 2017 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2017 PAGE 44
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.56 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(P)

(D)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2013 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2013 PAGE 45
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.57 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2013-10

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2013 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2013 PAGE 46
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.58 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

(D)

Advice No. 2013-10

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 47
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 15. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 48
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 16. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: MAY 22, 2014 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: JUNE 1, 2014 PAGE 49
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.61 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 50
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 17. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 51
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 18. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 52
RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 19. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 53
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 20. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: AUGUST 21, 2014 EFFECTIVE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2014 SECTION 5 PAGE 54 RELEASE: 2

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.63 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 55
RELEASE: 3

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

Material previously appearing on this page can be found on Page 21. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 19, 2017 SECTION 5
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2017 PAGE 56
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 5 - OPTIONAL CALLING PLANS

5.65 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE (T)

(D)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 6
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 6 - DIRECTORY SERVICES

(T) (M)

6.1 DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE

Directory Assistance service allows Customers to request information from Directory Assistance records. Directory Assistance charges apply to all requests. Customers are allowed a maximum of one request for information per call. In addition to the Directory Assistance charge, calls completed by an operator are charged the appropriate Operator Service Charges as specified in section 4.3.7 preceding. Person-to-Person and collect calls to Directory Assistance are not permitted.

\$ 2.49

(M) Material previously appeared in Section 12, Page 1.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections

7.1.1 General Provisions

When Customer equipment is connected to MTS or WATS, it must comply with the FCC Registration Program. If Grandfathered Customer equipment, test equipment or communications systems are connected, the Minimum Protection Criteria specified in this Tariff must be met.

A. Grandfathered Equipment

Grandfathered Customer equipment that was directly connected under Part 68 of the FCC's Rules and Regulations must conform to the following conditions:

- The terminal equipment was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange service prior to July 1,1979.
- 2. The multi-line terminating system was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange service prior to January 1, 1980.
- 3. The protective circuitry was directly connected to the telecommunications network or local exchange service prior to the dates set forth in 1. or 2. preceding.

7.1.2 Customer Responsibility

The Customer is responsible for the installation, operation and maintenance of any terminal equipment or communications system provided by the Customer.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 2
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.2 Customer Responsibility (continued)

No combination of terminal equipment or communications system shall require change in or alteration of the services of the Company, cause electrical hazards to Company personnel or its agents, damage to Company equipment, malfunction of billing equipment, or degradation of service to persons other than the user of the subject terminal equipment or communications system, the calling or called party. Upon notice from the Company that the terminal equipment or communications system is causing such hazard, damage, malfunction or degradation of service, the Customer shall make such change as shall be necessary to remove or prevent such hazard, damage, malfunction or degradation of service.

The Company will take immediate action to protect its services or interests if this regulation is violated, see Termination of Service for Cause, Section 2.

A. Maintenance

When a repair person is dispatched, a Maintenance of Service Charge will apply if testing discloses that the service is functioning correctly. See Maintenance of Service Charge, Section 3.

B. Reconnecting Grandfathered Equipment

Prior to reconnecting grandfathered equipment to Company services, the Customer must provide the following information about the equipment to the Company:

Manufacturer's name, model number and type Ringer Equivalence Number and Type (if known) Type of standard jack (if required) Service to which equipment is being connected Notarized affidavit for premises wiring Description of interface Line or pin assignment for a multiline jack

The Customer must also notify the Company when the grandfathered equipment is permanently disconnected.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 3
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.3 Company Responsibility

In addition to furnishing and maintaining components for its services, the Company will provide technical information pertaining to interface parameters as an aid to the Customer in selecting the appropriate interface.

The Company is not responsible to any party if a change in its service components, Minimum Protection Criteria, operations, or procedures which are consistent with the Registration Program, (1) affects any facilities, Customer equipment or communications systems provided by others in any way, or (2) requires their modification in order to be used with Company services. However, if such changes can be reasonably expected to materially affect the operating or transmission characteristics of the services or render any Customer premises equipment or communications system incompatible with the services, the Company will make a reasonable effort to notify the Customer in writing of the proposed change. A reasonable interval will be allowed before the change is implemented to enable the Customer to maintain compatibility of the Customer equipment or communications system with Company services.

Telecommunications services may or may not be suitable for use with all types of terminal equipment or systems, and where such equipment or system is connected to Company facilities the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities suitable for telecommunications services and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities in a manner proper for such telecommunications services. Subject to this responsibility the Company shall not be responsible for (1) the through transmission of signals generated by terminal equipment or systems, or for the quality of, or defects in, such transmission or (2) the reception of signals by terminal equipment or system, or (3) address signaling.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 4
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.4 Service Provided by a Local Exchange Carrier

Company services may be connected to services provided by a Local Exchange Carrier. The connections are subject to the regulations in this Tariff and the appropriate tariff(s) of the local exchange carrier.

7.1.5 Connection of Communications Systems

When a communications system or switched service is connected to the Company's services, the Customer must make all arrangements concerning the connected systems or service with its provider. The connection does not constitute a joint undertaking between this Company and the provider of the system or service. The system or service must be operated and maintained so it will work satisfactorily with the Company's services. Connections to service will be made in accordance with the following:

- When MTS, WATS, or 800 Service is connected to a communications system which is also connected to switching or terminal equipment such equipment shall provide the necessary network control signaling, e.g., answer supervision.
- The connection at the service interface must be made so that it continually complies with the specified Minimum Protection Criteria. See Minimum Protection Criteria following.
- When a communications system fails and the connection to services is not through switching equipment, the communications system must be arranged to promptly return the service to an idle (onhook) state. In addition, the Customer must promptly notify the Company when the communications system fails.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 5
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1. Connections (continued)

7.1.5 Connection of Communications Systems (continued)

The design, maintenance and operation of telecommunications service envisions that communications will originate or terminate at a station of the associated service. Connections of communications systems may be made to facilities furnished by the Company for telecommunications service at a premises where the Customer does not originate or terminate communications. The Company will not be responsible for the through transmission of signals or for the quality of transmission on such connections.

7.1.6 Connection of Customer Premises Equipment to Exchange Services

When Customer premises equipment is connected to certain exchange services it must comply with the FCC's Registration Program. (For simplicity, such Customer premises equipment will be referred to as "registered equipment" or "grandfathered equipment," as appropriate, in this section.)

A. Categories of Connections

Connections to all exchange services have been classified as Category I or Category III for the purpose of this Tariff. The category is determined by the type of exchange service and the type of Customer premises equipment connected to it.

Category I and Category III Connections - A Category I or III connection results when certain specified premises equipment is connected to an exchange service which is arranged for a specific type of operation. When Customer premises equipment is connected as a Category I or Category III connection it must comply with the Registration Program.

If grandfathered premises equipment, test equipment or a communications system is connected to an exchange service, the Minimum Protection Criteria specified in this section must be complied with at the interface point. All connections will be made at the interface point of the exchange service.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 6
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.6 Connection of Customer Premises Equipment to Exchange Services (continued)
- B. Connections Under Certification Programs

Customer premises equipment that was connected under the following programs as of their expiration date may remain connected as grandfathered equipment under the Registration Program.

Attestation - Expiration date July 1, 1980

Customer headsets and non-powered conferencing equipment may remain connected, be moved and reconnected according to the standards and procedures listed in the technical references for attested equipment.

Conformance - Expiration date July 1, 1979

Customer conforming answering devices may remain connected, be moved and reconnected according to the standards and procedures listed in the technical references for conforming answering devices.

C. Grandfathered Connecting Arrangements

Certain Customer premises equipment connected to an exchange service as a Category I or Category III connection prior to the appropriate register only date(s), was connected through a grandfathered connecting arrangement. The Carrier will continue to provide those grandfathered connecting arrangements under the following conditions:

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 7
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.6 Connections of Customer Premises Equipment to Exchange Services (continued)

C. (continued)

- Customer premises equipment that is connected through a grandfathered connecting arrangement may be moved and reconnected. The grandfathered connecting arrangement used to reconnect the premises equipment will be provided, subject to its availability.
- The Customer premises equipment must comply with the specified Minimum Protection Criteria in this section.

D. Communications Systems

Communications systems, including systems provided by authorized users, may be connected with exchange services at the premises of the Customer or authorized user provided that:

- 1. The Customer has a regular and continuing requirement for the origination or termination of communications over the communications system and the normal mode of operation of the communications system shall be to provide communications originating or terminating at the premises on which the connection is made.
- 2. The connection shall be made through switching equipment provided either by the Customer or by the Company.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 8
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.6 Connections of Customer Premises Equipment to Exchange Services (continued)
- D. (continued)
 - 3. When the connection is to WATS service, the Customer has a requirement to communicate over a WATS line to or from premises of that Customer located in the same rate state where the WATS initial period rate applies. Communications systems not subject to the FCC Rules and are not connected through switching equipment must terminate only in the WATS rate state in terminal equipment or multiline terminating systems subject to the FCC Rules.
 - 4. To protect the telecommunications network, the connection of a communications system with facilities furnished for channel service which are arranged for connection to a MTS or WATS access line or station apparatus provided by the Company as a part of a service provided by the Company to the same Customer, shall be through:

a connecting arrangement as provided by the Company, or registered or grandfathered terminal equipment, communications systems, or protective circuitry which, either singularly or in combination assures that the requirements of Part 68 of the FCCs Rules and Regulations are met at the channel interface.

Communications systems which involve direct electrical connection must comply with the Minimum Protection Criteria set forth in this section.

In lieu of the total hardware protection requirements in this paragraph 4, an alternative method for control of signal power only, as covered in this section, is available for the connections described in this paragraph.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 9
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.6 Connections of Customer Premises Equipment to Exchange Services (continued)
- E. Acoustic and Inductive Connections

Communications systems may be acoustically or inductively connected with Company facilities for exchange and channel service as specified in 1. and 2. following, provided the acoustic or inductive connection is made externally to Company voice transmitting and receiving equipment.

Communications systems may be connected to exchange services at the premises of the Customer where the Customer has a regular and continuing requirement for the origination or termination of communications over the communications systems provided that:

The normal mode of operation of the communications system shall be to provide communications originating or terminating at the premises on which the connection is made.

Communications systems which involve acoustic or inductive connections must comply with the Minimum Protection Criteria set forth in this section.

7.1.7 Other Connections

Except as otherwise provided in 7.1.6 C preceding, communications systems will be connected, as specified below, with Company services furnished for such purposes under this tariff.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 10
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)
- A. U.S. Army, Navy and Air Force

Facilities of the U.S. Department of the Army, Navy or Air Force may be connected with facilities of the Company, subject to the regulations following, where the Secretary of the Department or his authorized representative notifies the Company in writing that the connection is required for reasons of military necessity. Such connections will be made by means of switching or connecting equipment.

Telephone facilities of the aforesaid Departments may be connected to: a private branch exchange switchboard or other telephone switching or terminal equipment; provided, however, that the Department facilities will not be connected with the MTS network to form a through connection except in cases of emergency involving safety of life or property, unless such facilities are provided in locations where it is impracticable for the Company to furnish its facilities.

- B. Power, Pipe Line and Railroad Companies
 - 1. Facilities of an electric power company, or oil, oil products or natural gas pipe line company, or railroad company provided primarily to communicate with points located along a right-of-way (including premises of such company anywhere in cities, townships or villages along the right-of-way) owned or controlled by such company may be connected with facilities of the Company for the following purposes:
 - in cases of emergency involving safety of life or property;

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 11
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)
- B. Power, Pipe Line and Railroad Companies (continued)
 - in addition, in cases of calls originated by railroad employees under circumstances indicating need for prompt action to secure or maintain the safety, continuity, or reliability of railroad service to the public, and related to the movement of passengers, mail, property, or equipment by railroad, or the repair, maintenance, or construction of railroad right-of-way, structures, or equipment,
 - in cases where the Customer facilities serve locations where it is impracticable because of hazard or inaccessibility for the Carrier to furnish its facilities; and
 - during an interim period in cases where the Customer has arranged for replacement of said Customer facilities with facilities of the Carrier.
 - 2. Telephone circuits of such companies will be connected with the network to form a through connection only through manual switching equipment, or an attendant position of dial private branch exchange equipment. Such equipment or position may be located at either or both ends of the Customer's circuit.
 - Connection of a Customer's telephone circuit as specified in
 preceding may be established at either end of such circuit, but shall not be established at both ends simultaneously.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 12
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1. Connections (continued)

7.1.7. Other Connections (continued)

B. (continued)

- 4. Facilities of the Company, when connected with facilities of the Customer, will not be used for communications of others than the Customer, except that such facilities may be used for the communications of, and be connected with facilities furnished by the Company to, other companies which (a) are operated with the Customer as parts of an integrated electric power, oil, oil products or natural gas pipe line system or railroad system under direct or common ownership or control; or (b) own or operate an electric power or pipe line or railroad system jointly with the Customer; or (c) own or operate electric power or pipe line or railroad facilities interconnected with those of the Customer. Company facilities when so connected may be connected with the exchange or toll network to form a through connection for communications of other companies specified in 1,2, or 3, preceding, including calls originated by employees of such companies, only under the circumstances set forth in 1, preceding.
- 5. Terminal equipment and communications systems connected to exchange services specified in accordance with 7.1.6.A. preceding, prior to January 1, 1980 may remain connected and be moved and reconnected for the life of the equipment without registration unless subsequently modified. Effective May 1, 1983, new installations of terminal equipment or communications systems subject to Part 68 of the FCC's Rules and Regulations connected to such exchange and channel services must meet the requirements of Part 68 of the FCC's Rules and Regulations.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 13
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)
- C. State or Local Governmental Agencies
 - 1. Facilities of a state or local governmental agency, provided primarily to communicate with fixed points or mobile units on or along highways operated, patrolled or maintained by the agency, may, in lieu of the provisions of 7.1.6.A. preceding, be connected with facilities furnished by the Company subject to the regulations following. Such connections will be made by means of switching or connecting equipment.
 - 2. Customer telephone facilities may be connected to a private branch exchange switchboard or other telephone switching equipment of the Company for communication with stations and channel facilities associated with said switching equipment; provided, however, that a private branch exchange switchboard will not be connected with private telephone switching equipment located on the same general premises or in the same general local service area.
 - 3. Channels will be furnished by the Company between a terminal of Customer facilities within or near a telephone exchange area or local service area and a location within the exchange or local service area for connection at such location with Customer terminal equipment.
- D. U.S. Government Executive Branch

Equipment of a Department or Agency of the Executive Branch of the U.S. Government used for the purpose of disguising or concealing the contents or meaning of communications may be connected with Company furnished exchange services where the head of the Department or Agency whose equipment is to be connected, or the authorized

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 14
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)

D. (continued)

representative, notifies the Company in writing that such connection is required to safeguard official information in the interest of national defense, or other confidential official information disclosure of which to unauthorized persons would be detrimental to the public interest. Such connections shall be made by means of connecting equipment or arrangements furnished by the Company.

E. National Defense and Security

In certain cases the FCC Rules permit the connection of non-registered equipment or systems to the telecommunications network, provided that the Secretary of Defense; the head of any other governmental department (having requisite FCC approval); or their authorized representative certifies in writing to the Company that:

- The connection is required in the interest of national defense and security;
- The equipment to be connected either complies with the technical requirements of the FCC Rules or will not cause harms to the telecommunications network or Company employees; and
- The work is supervised by an installation supervisor who meets the qualifications stated in the FCC Rules.

F. Hazardous or Inaccessible Locations

Except as otherwise provided in 7.1.7.B.(5) preceding, facilities furnished by the Customer which involve hazardous or inaccessible locations, i.e., mines or powder manufacturing companies, may be connected with exchange service furnished the Customer by the Company. The requirement for the use of a standard jack is waived for registered equipment connected in these locations.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 15
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)
- G. Company Channels

Channels furnished by the Company to one Customer may be connected to MTS or WATS access lines furnished to a different Customer. Connections shall be made through switching equipment, provided by the Customer, authorized user or joint user.

- H. Other Carriers Communication System
- 1. A communication system provided by an other carrier to a Customer, authorized user or joint user of an exchange service, furnished by the Company may be connected at the premises of the Customer, authorized user or joint user to the exchange service furnished by the Company where the Customer, authorized user or joint user has a regular and continuing requirement for the origination or termination of communications over the communications system of the other carriers.

Where the connection of an other carrier communications system is by means of a channel derivation device, the above provision setting forth a regular and continuing requirement for the origination or termination of communications over such system is not applicable. In addition the provision of 2, following does not apply.

- 2. The normal mode of operation of the other carrier communications system shall be to provide communications originating or terminating at the premises at which the connection is made.
- 3. Connections shall be made only if the forms of electrical communication are the same and consistent with those for which the Company provided service is offered. Connections are not represented as being suitable for satisfactory transmission.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 16
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.7 Other Connections (continued)
- H. (continued)
 - 4. Where the connection of an other carrier communications system is by means of an acoustic or inductive connection, such connection shall be made externally to Company provided voice transmitting and receiving equipment.
 - 5. Where the connection of an other carrier communications system is by means of a direct electrical connection, such connection shall be made:
 - through switching equipment provided either by the Customer, authorized user, joint user, or other carrier
 - 6. When the connection is by means of switching equipment provided by the Customer, authorized user or joint user, such switching equipment and the facilities provided by the other carrier shall be treated as a communications system provided by the Customer and the regulations applicable to the connection of such communications systems, set forth in 7.1.6 preceding apply.
 - 7. Where the Customer of such other carrier is an authorized user of an exchange service furnished by the Company and connection is made at the authorized user's premises, all communications over the interconnected facilities shall be between the authorized user and the Company's Customer and be related directly to the business of the Company's Customer.
 - 8. Other carrier's systems may be connected at the Customer's, authorized user's or joint user's premises to station apparatus provided by the Company to the same Customer.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 17
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.8 Minimum Protection Criteria

Minimum Protection Criteria have been specified so that Company personnel or its agents, equipment, and services will be protected from the harmful effects of signal power overload and hazardous voltages. Minimum Protection Criteria applies to the direct electrical, acoustic, or inductive connections of Customer equipment and communications systems to Company services.

A. General

Customer equipment, test equipment and communications systems which are connected to services on a direct electrical basis or an acoustic or inductive basis, must comply with the following:

- 1. Since a circuit utilizes Company channels and equipment in common with other circuits and services, it is necessary that the power of the signal applied to the circuit be limited in order to prevent excessive noise and crosstalk. Because each circuit is individually engineered, a single valued limit for all applications cannot be specified. Therefore, the power of the signal (for direct electrical connections in the band above 300 Hertz) which may be applied by the equipment to the interface will be specified by the Company for each application to be consistent with the signal power allowed on this Company's telecommunications network.
- 2. To protect other Company services, it is necessary that the signal which is applied at the interface meets the following limits:
- (a) The power in the band from 3,995 Hertz to 4,005 Hertz shall be at least 18dB below the power of the signal as specified in (1) above.
- (b) The power in the band from 4,005 Hertz to 10,000 Hertz shall not exceed 16dB below one milliwatt.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 18
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.8 Minimum Protection Criteria (continued)

A. General (continued)

- (c) The power in the band from 10,000 Hertz to 25,000 Hertz shall not exceed 24dB below one milliwatt.
- (d) The power in the band from 25,000 Hertz to 40,000 Hertz shall not exceed 36dB below one milliwatt.
- (e) The power in the band above 40,000 Hertz shall not exceed 50dB below one milliwatt.
- (f) To prevent the interruption or disconnection of a call, it is necessary that the signal applied at the interface be limited. Specifically, the signal at the interface shall at no time have energy concentrated solely in the 2450 to 2750 Hz band. If there is signal power at the interface in the 2450 to 2750 Hz band, it must not exceed the power present at the same time in the 800 to 2450 Hz band.

B. Direct Electrical Connections

In addition to the regulations in A. preceding, Customer equipment, test equipment, and communications systems which are connected to MTS or WATS on a direct electrical basis must comply with the following:

To prevent excessive noise and crosstalk, it is necessary that the power of the signal presented at the central office not exceed 12dB below one milliwatt when measured over any three second interval. To insure that this limit is not exceeded, the power of the signal which may be applied by the premises equipment, test equipment or communications system to the interface will be specified for each Customer location. In no case shall the power exceed one milliwatt.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 19
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

- 7.1 Connections (continued)
- 7.1.8 Minimum Protection Criteria (continued)
- C. Acoustic or Inductive Connections

In addition to the regulations in A. preceding, Customer equipment and communications systems which are connected to MTS or WATS on an acoustic or inductive basis must comply with the following:

To prevent excessive noise and crosstalk, it is necessary that the power of the signal which is applied by the equipment to the interface located on the Customer's premises be limited so that the signal power does not exceed 9dB below one milliwatt when averaged over any three second interval. However, to permit each Customer, independent of distance from the central office, to supply signal power which at the central office approximates 12dB below one milliwatt when averaged over any three second interval, the Company, at the Customer's request, will specify, for each Customer location, the signal power at the interface, which shall in no case exceed one milliwatt.

7.1.9 Recording of Two-Way Telephone Conversations

The regulations, terms and conditions pertaining to the recording of two-way telephone conversations are identified in Consumer AT&T Service Guide.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 7
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 20
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 7</u> - CONNECTIONS OF PREMISES EQUIPMENT

7.1 Connections (continued)

7.1.10 Violation of Regulations

Where any terminal equipment or communication system is used with telecommunications services furnished by the Company and any of the connections provisions are violated, the Company will take such immediate action as appropriate for the protection of its facilities and will promptly notify the Customer of the violation. The Customer shall discontinue such use of the equipment or system or correct the violation and shall confirm in writing to the Company with ten days, following the receipt of written notice from the Company, that such use has ceased or that the violation has been corrected. Failure of the Customer to discontinue such use or to correct the violation and to give the required written confirmation to the Company within the time stated above shall result in termination of the Customer's service in accordance with the provisions stated in Section 2, until such time as the Customer complies with the provisions of this Tariff.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 8
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 8 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 9
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

<u>SECTION 9</u> - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 10
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 10 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: OCTOBER 12, 2012 SECTION 11
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 1, 2012 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 0

SECTION 11 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 12
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 12 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

(T)

Material previously appearing on this page can be found in Section 6, Page 1. (N)

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

ISSUED: NOVEMBER 17, 2023 SECTION 13
EFFECTIVE: NOVEMBER 27, 2023 PAGE 1
RELEASE: 1

SECTION 13 - RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

Material previously appearing on this page can be found in Section 5, Page 22. (T) (M)